
 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Chief Executive Officer 

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

 

Report on Audit of Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India 

Operations) (“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required for banking companies and are in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as 

at March 31, 2021 and its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Bank in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

standalone financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

 
We draw attention to Note No. 6.9 of Schedule 18 of the financial statements which explains the 

uncertainties and the management’s assessment of the financial impact, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, for 

which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon 

circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Other Information 
 

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Basel III - Pillar 3 disclosures, but does not include the financial statements and 

our auditor’s reports thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 



 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 

the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and provisions of section 29 of the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949 and circulars guidelines and directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time 

as applicable to the Bank. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Management is also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s 

financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 



 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the 

provisions of section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and section 133 of the Act read with rule 

7 of the Companies (Rules), 2014 (as amended).  

 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we report that:  

 

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;  

 

b) the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice during the course of our audit, have 

been within the powers of the Bank; and  

 

c) the Bank has only one branch. We have visited the Bank’s branch for the purposes of our audit.  

 

3. Further, as required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;  

 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank, so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books; 

 

c) the Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are 

in agreement with the books of account;  

 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended), to the extent they are not inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by Reserve 

Bank of India; 

 

e) the requirements of section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable considering the Bank is a branch of 

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A., Utrecht, which is incorporated in Netherlands;  

 

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the  financial 

statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 

in “Annexure A”; 



 

 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, considering the Bank is a branch of 

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A., Utrecht, which is incorporated in Netherlands, the requirements 

prescribed under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. the Bank does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 which would impact its 

financial position – Refer Note 12.1(d) of the financial statements; 

 

ii. the Bank has made provision as at March 31, 2021, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts – Refer Note 12.1(c) of the financial statements;  

 

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Bank.  

 

 

 

 

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Reg. No.: 104607W/W100166 

 

 

 

 

Roshni R. Marfatia 

PARTNER 
M. No.: 106548 

UDIN: 21106548AAAACM6755 

 

Place: Mumbai, 

Date: June 29, 2021 

  



 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 

Referred to in Para 3(g) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent 

Auditor’s Report on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Coöperatieve 

Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) (“the Bank”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of 

the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal controls with reference to financial statements reporting criteria established by the Bank 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 

“Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 

the Bank’s business, including adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 

the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to 

be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

 

A bank’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A bank's 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the bank are being made only in accordance 



 

with authorisations of management of the bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 

or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the bank's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

 

 

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Reg. No. 104607W/W100166 

 

 

 

 

 

Roshni Marfatia 

PARTNER 

M. No.: 106548 

UDIN: 21106548AAAACM6755 

 

Place: Mumbai, 

Date: June 29, 2021 



(Rs. in `000s)

Particulars Schedules  As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020 

I Capital and Liabilities:

Capital 1 12,200,775                        12,200,775                        

Reserves & surplus 2 (2,389,447)                         (2,411,705)                         

Deposits 3 34,893,602                        46,372,407                        

Borrowings 4 4,700,055                           4,676,505                           

Other liabilities and provisions 5 2,142,482                           2,536,568                           

51,547,467                        63,374,550                        

II Assets:

Cash and Balance with Reserve Bank of India 6 10,309,238                        17,001,016                        

Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 2,450,865                           1,137,634                           

Investments 8 13,693,390                        17,531,429                        

Advances 9 22,897,770                        25,317,141                        

Fixed assets 10 34,631                                36,249                                

Other assets 11 2,161,573                           2,351,081                           

51,547,467                        63,374,550                        

Contingent liabilities 12 48,789,751                        37,559,209                        

Bills for collection 5,545,865                           6,157,386                           

Significant accounting policies and notes to the Financial Statements 17 & 18

As per our report of even date attached

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP For and on behalf of 
Chartered Accountants Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A.
ICAI Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166 (India Operations)

Roshni Marfatia Ramit Bhasin Sjoerd Hooghiemstra
Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 106548

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Hongkong
Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021

 Saurabh Pendse
 Director- Finance & Control

Place: Mumbai
Date:  29-June-2021

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

Ramit Bhasin (Jun 29, 2021 20:07 GMT+5.5)

https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72
https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72
https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72


(Rs. in `000s)

Particulars Schedules Year ended 31 March 
2021

Year ended 31 March 
2020

I Income
Interest earned 13 2,846,609                           4,073,002                           
Other income 14 201,680                              105,731                              
Total 3,048,289                           4,178,733                           

II Expenditure
Interest expended 15 1,382,083                           2,534,704                           
Operating expenses 16 1,136,356                           1,352,380                           
Provisions and contingencies 507,592                              800,325                              
Total 3,026,031                           4,687,409                           

III Profit
Net profit/(loss) for the year 22,258                                (508,676)                             
Add: Balance in Profit and Loss Account brought forward from
previous year (3,132,455)                         (2,623,779)                         
Total (3,110,197)                         (3,132,455)                         

IV Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserves 5,565                                   -                                       
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve Account -                                       -                                       
Balance carried over to balance sheet (3,115,762)                         (3,132,455)                         
Total (3,110,197)                         (3,132,455)                         

Significant accounting policies and notes to the Financial Statements 17 & 18

As per our report of even date attached

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP For and on behalf of 
Chartered Accountants Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A.
ICAI Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166 (India Operations)

Roshni Marfatia Ramit Bhasin Sjoerd Hooghiemstra
Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 106548

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Hongkong
Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021

 Saurabh Pendse
 Director- Finance & Control

Place: Mumbai
Date:  29-June-2021

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

Ramit Bhasin (Jun 29, 2021 20:07 GMT+5.5)

https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72
https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72
https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72


(Rs. in `000s)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 
2021

Year ended 31 March 
2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before taxation 109,258                            (508,676)                          

Adjustments for

Provision / (Reversal) for standard assets 84,327                              (57,256)                            
Country risk provision 4,942                                 8,102                                
Reversal for unhedged foreign curreny exposure (12,479)                             (21,944)                            
Provision for Non Performing Assets 300,000                            (362,010)                          
Bad-Debts written off -                                     1,225,393                        
Depreciation on fixed assets 11,820                              9,181                                
Provision for depreciation in investments 43,803                              8,040                                
Loss on sale of fixed assets 308                                    10                                     
Interest on Borrowings 5,487                                 62,842                             

Operating profit before working capital changes 547,466                            363,682                           

Decrease/(Increase) in investments 3,794,236                         (5,406,843)                       
Decrease in loans and advances 2,119,371                         13,941,741                      
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets 189,508                            (84,860)                            
(Decrease)/Increase in current liabilities (558,518)                           358,618                           
(Decrease)/Increase in deposits (11,478,805)                     3,117,568                        
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (5,386,742)                       12,289,906                     
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) -                                     (174,000)                          
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (5,386,742)                       12,115,906                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (12,389)                             (23,484)                            
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,880                                 (10)                                    
Net cash used in investment activities (10,509)                             (23,494)                            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in borrowings 23,550                              (6,360,098)                       
Interest paid on borrowing (4,846)                               (81,315)                            
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 18,704                              (6,441,413)                      

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,378,547)                       5,650,999                        
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18,138,650                       12,487,651                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,760,103                      18,138,650                     

Notes to cash flow statements:

i)  Cash and cash equivalents represent

Cash and Balance with Reserve Bank of India (Schedule 6)                        10,309,238                          1,851,016 

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice (Schedule 7)                          2,450,865                       16,287,634 

Total                        12,760,103                       18,138,650 

As per our report of even date attached

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP For and on behalf of 
Chartered Accountants Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A.
ICAI Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166 (India Operations)

Roshni Marfatia Ramit Bhasin Sjoerd Hooghiemstra
Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 106548

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Hongkong
Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021 Date:  29-June-2021

 Saurabh Pendse
 Director- Finance & Control

Place: Mumbai
Date:  29-June-2021

ii) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3, specified under 
section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of The Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014.

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

Ramit Bhasin (Jun 29, 2021 20:07 GMT+5.5)

https://secure.in1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAFQu0lSaBeqtcu44eJaN6kGj0__j-JZ72
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(Rs. in `000s)

SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

I

500,000                             250,000                             

II Capital
Opening Balance 12,200,775                        12,200,775                        
Additions during the year -                                      -                                      

Total 12,200,775                        12,200,775                        

SCHEDULE 2- RESERVES AND SURPLUS

I. Statutory Reserves
Opening balance 477,789                             477,789                             
Transfer from Profit and Loss account 5,565                                  -                                      
Closing balance 483,354                             477,789                             

II. Share Premium -                                          -                                          

III. Capital Reserves -                                          -                                          

IV. Revenue and Other Reserves -                                          -                                          

V. Investment Reserve
Opening Balance 242,961                             242,961                             
Transfer from Profit and Loss account -                                      -                                      
Closing balance 242,961                             242,961                             

V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account (3,115,762)                         (3,132,455)                         

Total (2,389,447)                         (2,411,705)                         

SCHEDULE 3- DEPOSITS

A. I. Demand deposits 1,905,044                          1,478,183                          
(i) From banks -                                      -                                      
(ii) From others 1,905,044                          1,478,183                          

II. Saving bank deposits -                                      -                                      

III. Term deposits 32,988,558                        44,894,224                        
(i) From banks -                                      -                                      
(ii) From others 32,988,558                        44,894,224                        

TOTAL 34,893,602                        46,372,407                        

B. I Deposits of branches in India 34,893,602                        46,372,407                        
II Deposits of branches outside India -                                      -                                      

TOTAL 34,893,602                        46,372,407                        

SCHEDULE 4- BORROWINGS

I. Borrowings in India:
(i) Reserve Bank of India -                                      -                                      
(ii) Other banks -                                      -                                      
(iii) Other institutions and agencies -                                      -                                      

II. Borrowings outside India: (from banks) 4,700,055                          4,676,505                          

Secured borrowings included in I and II above -                                      -                                      

Total 4,700,055                          4,676,505                          

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Amount of Deposit kept with Reserve Bank of India under section 11(2)(b) of the 
Banking Regulation Act, 1949

Schedules forming part of financial statements

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020



(Rs. in `000s)

SCHEDULE 5- OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

I. Bills Payable -                                          -                                          
II. Inter-office adjustment(net) -                                          -                                          
III. Interest accrued 128,298                             239,560                             
IV. Provision towards Standard assets [refer to schedule 18 note 6(6.8)] 230,193                             153,404                             
V. Others (including provisions) 1,783,991                          2,143,604                          

Total 2,142,482                         2,536,568                         

SCHEDULE 6- CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

I Cash in hand 11                                       11                                       

II Balances with Reserve Bank of India
(i) in current account 2,109,227                          1,851,005                          
(ii) in other accounts * 8,200,000                          15,150,000                       

* Placement with Reserve Bank of India under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF).

Total 10,309,238                       17,001,016                       

SCHEDULE 7- BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

I. In India
(i) Balances with banks
(a) in Current accounts  6,367                                 41,857                               
(b) in Other deposit accounts  -                                          -                                          

(ii) Money at Call and Short Notice
(a) with banks -                                          -                                          
(b) with other institutions -                                          -                                          

Total (i and ii) 6,367                                 41,857                               

II. Outside India
(i) in Current accounts  1,530,623                          187,797                             
(ii) in Other deposit account  -                                          -                                          
(iii) Money at call and short notice 913,875                             907,980                             

Total 2,444,498                         1,095,777                         

Total (I and II) 2,450,865                         1,137,634                         

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Schedules forming part of financial statements

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020



(Rs. in `000s)

SCHEDULE 8- INVESTMENTS

I. Investments in India
(i) Government securities 13,745,233                         17,539,469                         
(ii) Shares 15,437                                 15,437                                 

Total Gross Value(i+ii) 13,760,670                         17,554,906                         
Less: Provision for depreciation in investment/shares (67,280)                                (23,477)                                

Total Net Value 13,693,390                         17,531,429                         

II. Investments Outside India -                                            -                                            

Total Net Value -                                            -                                            

Total (I & II) 13,693,390                         17,531,429                         

SCHEDULE 9- ADVANCES

A. (i) Bills purchased and discounted 120,047                               7,164                                   
(ii) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand 6,944,486                           10,800,441                         
(iii) Term loans 15,833,237                         14,509,536                         

Total 22,897,770                         25,317,141                         

B (i) Secured by tangible assets (including book debts) 11,786,685                         12,143,505                         
(ii) Covered by bank guarantees 4,012,073                           3,388,914                           
(iii) Unsecured 7,099,012                           9,784,722                           

Total 22,897,770                         25,317,141                         

C I Advances in India
(i) Priority sector 3,193,057                           2,425,462                           
(ii) Public sectors -                                            1,500                                   
(iii) Banks 6,598                                   362,238                               
(iv) Others 19,698,115                         22,527,941                         

Total 22,897,770                         25,317,141                         

II Advances Outside India -                                            -                                            

Total -                                            -                                            

Total (I & II) 22,897,770                         25,317,141                         

Total 22,897,770                         25,317,141                         

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Schedules forming part of financial statements

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020



(Rs. in `000s)

SCHEDULE 10- FIXED ASSETS

I Premises -                                       -                                       

II Other Fixed Assets (including Furniture and Fixtures)
Opening balance at Cost 184,423                              175,428                              
Additions during the year 26,066                                9,168                                   
Deductions during the year (6,000)                                 (174)                                     
Depreciation to Date (171,438)                             (163,430)                             

Total 33,051                                20,992                                

III Capital Work in Progress 1,580                                   15,257                                

Total (I, II & III) 34,631                                36,249                                

SCHEDULE 11- OTHER ASSETS

I Inter-office adjustments (net) -                                            -                                            
II Interest accrued 193,598                              272,274                              
III Tax paid in advance/tax deducted at source (net of provision) 771,379                              771,379                              
IV Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of cliams -                                            -                                            
V Others 1,196,596                           1,307,428                           

Total 2,161,573                          2,351,081                          

SCHEDULE 12- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

I Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts -                                            -                                            
II Liability for partly paid investments -                                            -                                            
III (a) Liabilty on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts 12,674,589                        8,033,081                           

(b) Currency Swaps/IRS 33,107,398                        27,609,458                        
IV Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

(a) In India 385,489                              1,628,664                           
(b) Outside India 374,509                              214,865                              

V Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 2,247,766                           65,680                                
VI Other Items for which the bank is contingently liable -                                            7,461                                   

Total 48,789,751                        37,559,209                        

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Schedules forming part of financial statements

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020



(Rs. in `000s)

SCHEDULE 13- INTEREST EARNED

I. Interest/discount on advances/bills 1,786,594                          2,862,583                          
II. Income on investments 703,009                             835,108                             
III. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds 354,957                             252,227                             
IV. Others 2,049                                  123,084                             

Total 2,846,609                          4,073,002                          

SCHEDULE 14- OTHER INCOME

I. Commission, exchange and brokerage 357,590                             304,050                             
II. Profit/(Loss) on sale of Investments (89,186)                              (656)                                    
III. Profit/(Loss) on revaluation of Investments -                                          -                                          
IV. Profit/(Loss) on sale of land, building and other assets (308)                                    10                                       
V. Profit/(Loss) on exchange transactions (net) (83,323)                              (199,885)                            
VI. Miscellaneous income 16,907                                2,212                                  

Total 201,680                             105,731                             

SCHEDULE 15- INTEREST EXPENDED 

I. Interest on deposits 1,375,825                          2,454,554                          
II. Interest on Reserve Bank of India/ inter-bank borrowings 5,719                                  78,686                                
III. Others 539                                     1,464                                  

Total 1,382,083                          2,534,704                          

SCHEDULE 16- OPERATING EXPENSES 

I. Payments to and provisions for employees 445,237                             448,201                             
II. Rent, taxes and lighting 40,854                                39,849                                
III. Printing and stationery 85                                       661                                     
IV. Advertisement and publicity 684                                     6,889                                  
V. Depreciation on bank's property 11,820                                9,181                                  
VI. Auditor's fees and expenses 4,004                                  3,738                                  
VII. Professional charges 64,515                                78,029                                
VIII. Law charges 5,134                                  16,313                                
IX. Postage, telegrams, telephones etc 1,424                                  1,624                                  
X. Repairs and maintenance 1,709                                  1,470                                  
XI. Insurance 54,778                                44,727                                
XII. Head office / Regional charges 245,381                             446,557                             
XIII. Other expenditure 260,731                             255,141                             

Total 1,136,356                          1,352,380                          

Coöperatieve Rabobank U.A. (India Operations) 

Schedules forming part of financial statements

 Year ended 31 March 
2021 

 Year ended 31 March 
2020 
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 COÖPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A. (India Operations)      

SCHEDULE 17 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Background 

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 comprise accounts of the India Operations of 

COÖPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A. (the ‘Bank’) which is incorporated in Netherlands under cooperative laws. In March 2011, the 

Bank received the approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to commence its branch in Mumbai, India. The Bank was included 

in the second schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 vide notification dated 18 July 2011 and in the Gazette of India on 

30 July 2011.   

2. Basis of preparation and use of estimates 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under the Third Schedule (Form A 

and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank used in the preparation of 

these financial statements conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), the guidelines issued by 

the RBI from time to time, the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 

paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent applicable and practices generally prevalent in the banking 

industry in India. The Bank follows the accrual method of accounting and the historical cost convention. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires 

Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 

and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. 

 

3. Significant accounting policies 

 

(a) Foreign currency translation 

 

Initial recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of 
India (FEDAI), as per the guidelines issued by the RBI. 

 

Exchange differences: 

Exchange difference arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items, at rates different from those 

at which they were initially recorded during the year, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they 

arise. 

 

Outstanding forward exchange contracts, bills and foreign currency loans are revalued on the balance sheet date at rates 

notified by FEDAI and the resultant gain or loss on revaluation is included in the Profit and Loss Account.  

 

Contingent liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed in balance sheet date at the rates notified by FEDAI. 
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(b) Investments 

 

(i) Investments are categorized as Held to Maturity (HTM), Held for Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) in 

accordance with the RBI guidelines based on intent at the time of acquisition. However for disclosure in Balance 

sheet, these are classified as government securities, other approved securities, shares, debentures and bonds, 

investment in subsidiaries/joint ventures and other investments. These are valued in accordance with RBI guidelines. 

 

(ii) The investment policy of the Bank does not permit the Bank to invest in investments under HFT category. 

 

(iii) The Bank does not undertake non-SLR category investments, except in a situation where Bank has received equity 

shares as a part of the bad debt settlement process. 

 

(iv) Investments classified as AFS are marked-to-market on monthly intervals. The net depreciation, if any, in each 

category classification is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. Net appreciation, if any, is ignored.  

 

(v) Treasury Bills being discounted instruments are valued at carrying cost (amortized cost). 

 

(vi) Securities for the purpose of sale will be treated on First in First out basis (FIFO). 

 

(vii) The Bank follows settlement date accounting for Investments. 

 

(viii) The difference between the consideration amount of first leg and second leg of the repo/ reverse repo is recognised 

as interest expense/ income in the Profit and Loss Account. 

 

(ix) The transfer of securities between categories of investments is accounted as per RBI guidelines. 

However there were no transfers of investments between categories during the year. 

(x) Currently, the Bank does not undertake transactions in the ‘When issued’ segment of NDS OM in G-secs. 

 

(xi)  Profit or loss on sale or redemption is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

 

 

(c) Derivatives transactions 

 

(i) The Bank enters into derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps for hedging purposes. 

 

(ii) All derivatives transactions are reported on a mark- to- market basis in the financial statements. The unrealized 

gains/losses are recorded in the Profit and Loss Account and the corresponding amounts are reflected as other assets 

or other liabilities respectively in the Balance Sheet. 

 

(iii) At the balance sheet date, all foreign exchange contracts outstanding are marked to market at the rates notified by 

FEDAI for specified maturities. The resulting profit or losses are recognized in Profit and Loss Account. 

 

(d) Advances and provision for advances 

 (i) For standard assets - general provision has been made as prescribed by the RBI. 

 (ii) Advances are stated after deduction of bills rediscounting and provisions on non performing advances, unrealized 

interest held in suspense account  

(iii)  Provisions on non performing advances are made in accordance with RBI guidelines.  

 

(e) Fixed assets   

Fixed assets including intangibles like software are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable costs (including inward freight, duties, 

taxes and incidental expenses) of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Fixed assets individually 
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costing up to Rs. 50,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase, unless part of a capital outlay programme 

representing upgradation of infrastructure. 

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as prescribed by 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The rates for this purpose are as follows: 

Asset Category Rate 

Leasehold Improvements 
Amortized over the primary lease period or 5 years 

whichever is shorter 

Furniture and Fixtures  10 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 

Vehicles 8 years 

Computer Hardware – Laptops/Desktops 3 years 

Computer Hardware – Servers 6 years 

Computer Software 5 years 

 

 Pre-used fixed assets purchased from Group Company are depreciated over the balance estimated useful life. 

(f) Impairment of assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment based on 

internal/external factors, an impairment loss is recognized, wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

the current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. After impairment, depreciation is 

provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over the remaining useful life. 

(g) Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and can be reliably measured. 

Interest income is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account on time proportionate basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and the rate applicable, except in the case of interest on non-performing assets which is recognized in the 

Profit and Loss Account on receipt basis as per RBI guidelines. 

Loan Origination fees wherever charged and does not relate to any specific service is amortized, on a straight line 

basis, over the tenor of the underlying loan. Monitoring / Arranger fees on loans granted to Indian borrowers by other 

group entities are recognized, in line with the servicing obligation, over the tenor of the related loans on a straight line 

basis. Processing Fees on loan servicing is charged on disbursal of loan and is recognized upfront at the inception of the 

transaction. Guarantee amendment fee is accounted for upfront. Commission for issuance / amendment of guarantees on 

behalf of head office is treated as services fee and the same is accounted for upfront.  

Discount accretion on discounted instruments under the AFS category is recognized on a straight line basis. 

  

(h) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund 

are charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the year when the contributions are due. The Bank has no obligation, other 

than the contribution payable to the provident fund. 

The Bank operates a defined benefit plans for employees, viz., gratuity. The cost of providing benefits under this plan is 

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. The actuarial valuation is carried out for plan using the 

projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the period in 

which they occur. 
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Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. 

The Bank measures the expected cost of such absences based on actual additional amount that it expects to pay as a result 

of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

(i) Taxation 

 

Taxation expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period, determined in accordance with the Income-tax 

Act, 1961 and the rules framed thereunder) and deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effect of timing differences 

between accounting income and taxable income for the year. 

Deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized in accordance with the 

provisions of AS 22 – Accounting for Taxes on Income using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

at the reporting date.  

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that assets can be realized in 

future.  In case there are unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if 

there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets. 

(j) Accounting for provisions and contingent liabilities 

 

The Bank creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an 

outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent 

liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will not require an 

outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of 

outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 

probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

 

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However contingent assets are assessed continually and 

if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the assets and related income are recognized in the period in 

which change occurs. 

 
(k) Segment information 

The segmentation is based on the nature of products and services offered by the Bank, and its internal reporting systems 

and complies with the accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of financial statements of the Bank 

and is in conformity with Accounting Standard (AS 17) prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 read with general circular 

8/2014 dated April 04, 2014 issued by the ministry of Corporate Affairs and RBI Guidelines. 

The Bank operates in three business segments:  Corporate Banking , Treasury & Other Banking Business. 

The Corporate Banking segment provides services in the form of providing loans to the corporates. The segment earns 

income in the form of Interest and fees on loans. 

The Treasury segment mainly undertakes Asset-Liability gap funding, by taking interest rate and liquidity risks, investing in 

government securities and funding & gapping of corporate loan products. Revenues of Treasury segment consist of 

interest income on assets and gains from investment activities. Treasury provides funds to other segments as per the 

needs of business. 

Other Banking Business includes items not allocated to any other segment as specified in RBI guidelines.  

(l) Leases 

 

Assets taken on lease are accounted for in accordance with ‘AS-19 Leases’. Lease payments under operating leases are 

recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account on straight line basis over the lease term. 
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 SCHEDULE 18 – Notes appended to and forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 

1 Capital Adequacy Ratio   

The Bank follows RBI guidelines for implementation of the new capital adequacy framework for calculation of capital 

adequacy under Basel III requirements. Credit risk is calculated using Standardized approach, Operational risk is 

calculated using the Basic Indicator Approach and Market Risk is computed in accordance with RBI guidelines with 

minimum capital requirement being expressed in terms of two specific charges- Specific Market Risk and General Market 

Risk. 

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank, calculated as per RBI guidelines is set out as below:         

                                    (Rs. ‘000s) 

Sr. 
no. 

Particulars 

As at As at 

 31 March 
2021 

 31 March 
2020 

i) Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 34.48 37.35 

ii) Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 34.48 37.35 

iii) Tier 2 capital ratio (%) 1.03 0.98 

iv) Total Capital Ratio (CRAR) (%) 35.51 38.33 

v) 
Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India in 

nationalised Banks 

- - 

vi) Amount of equity capital raised - - 

vii) Amount of additional Tier 1 capital raised; of which; - - 

  Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) - - 

  Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) : - - 

viii) Amount of additional Tier 2 capital raised; of which; - - 

  Debt capital instruments: - - 

  

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative 

Preference Shares (PCPS) / Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference 

Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)] 

- - 

The Bank has not raised any subordinated debt during the current and previous year. 

2 INVESTMENTS   

2.1 Value of Investments      

   (Rs. ‘000s) 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 

As at As at 

 31 March 
2021 

 31 March 
2020 

1) Gross Value of Investments 13,760,670 17,554,906 

  (a) In India 13,760,670 17,554,906 

  (b) Outside India - - 

2) Provision for Depreciation 67,280 23,477 

  (a) In India 67,280 23,477 

  (b) Outside India - - 

3) Net Value of Investments 13,693,390 17,531,429 

  (a) In India 13,693,390 17,531,429 

  (b) Outside India - - 
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2.2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments 

                                                             (Rs. '000s) 

Sr. No Particulars 

As at As at 

 31 March 
2021 

 31 March 
2020 

1) Opening Balance 23,477 15,437 

2) Add: Provisions made during the year 43,803 8,040 

3) Less: Write offs/write back of excess provisions during the year - - 

4) Closing Balance 67,280 23,477 

 

2.3 Repo/LAF Transactions (in face value terms) 

 

Financial Year 2020-21   
                                         (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 

Minimum 
outstanding 
during the 

year 

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year 

Daily 
Average 

outstanding 
during the 

year* 

Balance as at 
31 March 

2021 

Securities sold under Repos/LAF 
                         

-  
 

- - - 

(i)  Government Securities - - - - 

(ii) Corporate debt securities - - - - 

Securities purchased under Reverse Repos/LAF 800,000 19,100,000 10,343,539 8,200,000 

(i)  Government securities 800,000 19,100,000 10,343,539 8,200,000 

(ii) Corporate debt securities - - - - 

               *Represents average balance of the days for which Repo/LAF transaction were outstanding.  

 

Financial Year 2019-2020   
                                         (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 

Minimum 
outstanding 
during the 

year 

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year 

Daily 
Average 

outstanding 
during the 

year* 

Balance as at 
31 March 

2020 

Securities sold under Repos/LAF 401,000 8,712,100 
                      

3,802,993  
 

- 

(i)  Government Securities 401,000 8,712,100 3,802,993  - 

(ii) Corporate debt securities - - - - 

Securities purchased under Reverse Repos/LAF 320,000 17,70,000 4,442,521 15,150,000 

(i)  Government securities 320,000 17,70,000 4,442,521 15,150,000 

(ii) Corporate debt securities - - - - 

               *Represents average balance of the days for which Repo/LAF transaction were outstanding.  

  

2.4 Non-SLR Investments Portfolio - Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investments 

 

    The Bank has held shares of 15,437 (Rs. ‘000) valued at NIL arising from settlement of NPA. The Bank hasn’t sold any non SLR    
investment during the year (Previous Year: NIL)  
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(i) Issuer composition as at 31 March 2021 of non- SLR investments:  
 

                     (Rs. '000s) 

No.  Issuer Total Amount Extent of 
private 
placement 

Extent of “below 
investment grade” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unrated” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unlisted 
securities” 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 

i. Public Sector Units - - - - - 

ii. Financial Institutions  - - - - - 

iii. Banks - - - - - 

 

                            (Rs. '000s) 

No.  Issuer Total Amount Extent of 
private 
placement 

Extent of “below 
investment grade” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unrated” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unlisted 
securities” 

iv. Private Corporates 15,437 - 15,437 - - 

v. Subsidiaries - - - - - 

vi. Others - - - - - 

vii. Provision held 

towards depreciation 

on Investment 

- - - - - 

viii. Provision held 

towards non- 

performing 

investments 

(15,437) - (15,437) - - 

 Total        - - - - - 

 

Amounts reported under columns (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive. 

 

Issuer composition as at 31 March 2020 of non- SLR investments:    

                     (Rs. '000s) 

No.  Issuer Total Amount Extent of 
private 
placement 

Extent of 
“below 
investment 
grade” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unrated” 
securities 

Extent of 
“unlisted 
securities” 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 

i. Public Sector 

Units 

- - - - - 

ii. Financial 

Institutions  

- - - - - 

iii. Banks - - - - - 

iv. Private 

Corporates 

15,437 - 15,437 - - 

v. Subsidiaries - - - - - 

vi. Others - - - - - 

vii. Provision held 

towards 

depreciation 

on Investment 

- - - - - 

viii. Provision held 

towards non- 

performing 

investments 

(15,437) - (15,437) - - 

 Total        - - - - - 

Amounts reported under columns (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive. 
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(ii)  Non- Performing Non SLR Investment:                                      (Rs. ‘000s) 

Particulars As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

Opening  Balance 15,437 15,437 

Addition during the year - - 

Reduction during the year  - - 

Closing Balance 15,437 15,437 

Total Provision held 15,437 15,437 

 

2.5 Sale and transfers to/from HTM category: NIL (Previous year: NIL) 

 

3 DERIVATIVES:    

 

3.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap    

  Disclosure in respect of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)   

                                                                                                                      (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

The notional principal of swap agreements 7,342,517 7,314,433 

Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to 

fulfill their obligations under the agreements 
111,131 121,164 

Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps - - 

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps IRS with Banks (80.64%) IRS with Banks (79.05%) 

The fair value of the swap book [(Payable)/Receivable] (76,968) (64,408) 

             Note – Excludes cross currency Interest rate swaps. 

 

(a) The nature and terms of CCS as at 31 March 2021 are set out as below  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                            (Rs. ‘000s) 
Nature  No.  Notional principal  Benchmark  Terms  

Trading  7 2,748,896  USD LIBOR  Rabobank Pays fixed USD and receives floating INR 

Trading  7 2,989,107  USD LIBOR  Rabobank Pays fixed INR receives floating USD 

Trading  1 877,320  MIBOR/LIBOR Rabobank Pays floating INR receives floating USD 

Trading  37 7,480,398  EURIBOR Rabobank Pays fixed EUR and receives floating INR 

Trading  40 11,394,760  EURIBOR Rabobank Pays fixed INR receives floating EUR 

Trading  1 274,400  MIBOR/EURIBOR Rabobank Pays floating INR receives floating EUR 

 

 

The nature and terms of CCS as at 31st March 2020 are set out as below    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                           (Rs. ‘000s)                          
Nature No. Notional principal Benchmark Terms 

Trading 7 2,704,799 USD LIBOR Rabobank Pays fixed USD and receives floating INR 

Trading 7 3,188,242 USD LIBOR Rabobank Pays fixed INR receives floating USD 

Trading 1 331,080 MIBOR/Euribor Rabobank Pays floating INR receives floating EUR 
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Trading 28 4,849,217 MIBOR Rabobank Pays fixed EUR and receives floating INR 

Trading 31 9,221,685 Euribor Rabobank Pays fixed INR receives floating EUR 

          

       The nature and terms of IRS as at 31st March 2021 are set out as below    

                 (Rs.'000s) 

Nature No. Notional principal Benchmark Terms 

Trading 8 4,421,258 MIBOR/LIBOR Rabobank Pays Floating 

Trading 5 2,921,258 MIBOR/LIBOR Rabobank Pays Fixed 

 

The nature and terms of IRS as at 31st March 2020 are set out as below     

(Rs.'000s) 

Nature No. Notional principal Benchmark Terms 

Trading 7 3,782,216 MIBOR/LIBOR Rabobank Pays Floating 

Trading 7 3,532,216 MIBOR/LIBOR Rabobank Pays Fixed 

 

(b) Nature and Terms of Forward Rate Agreements     

 

Outstanding as at 31 March 2021: NIL (Previous Year: NIL) 

 

(c) Credit default Swaps       

There are no credit default swaps transactions entered into by the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. 

3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives     

                                                           (Rs. ‘000s) 

Sr. No. Particulars 
As at 31 

March 2021 
As at 31 

March 2020 

i. 

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken 

during  the year (instrument-wise) 

- - 

ii. 

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

(instrument-wise) 

- - 

iii. 

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

- - 

iv. 

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and 

not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

- - 

 

4 Qualitative Disclosures on Risk exposure in Derivatives  

Rabobank trades in derivatives, foreign exchange (including cross currency swaps) and interest rate to cover customer positions 

and to warehouse the risk. The market risk on derivative contracts is managed by Markets & Treasury and independently 

monitored by Risk Management in accordance to a limit and control structure at portfolio level which defines the limits on FX 

position, interest rate PV01 and VAR to monitor exposures. The Bank also adheres to Net Open Position and Aggregate Gap limits 

set by the Reserve Bank of India. The Bank does not follow hedge accounting and mark to market its derivative deals. 

The credit risk on customer derivative transactions and counterparty trades are managed through a laid down policy on sanction 

of corporate credit risk limits and counterparty limits. The exposures are monitored on a regular/ongoing basis by independent 

control functions. 

 
5 Quantitative Disclosures on Risk exposure in Derivatives:    

 
                                                                 (Rs. '000s) 

Sr. No Particulars 

Currency 
Derivatives* 

Interest Rate 
Derivatives** 

As at As at  

 31 March 2021  31 March 2021 

1 Derivatives (notional Principal Amount)     

  (a) For hedging -  -  

  (b) For trading 38,439,470     7,342,517  
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2 Marked to Market position     

  (a) Asset (+) 753,871  111,132  

  (b) Liability (-) (545,209) (34,164) 

3 Credit Exposure #  3,682,727                      182,057 

4 
Likely impact of one percentage change in Interest Rate 

(100*PV01)- Market Risk 
    

  (a) On hedging derivatives - - 

  (b) On trading derivatives 452 65,427 

5 Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year      

  (a) On hedging     

  Maximum - - 

  Minimum - - 

  (b) On trading      

  Maximum 14,792 93,068 

  Minimum 427 29,779 

 

# Based on current exposure method prescribed vide RBI master circular on exposure norms. 

*Currency Derivatives includes Cross Currency Swaps and Foreign Exchange Contracts. 

** Interest rate Derivatives includes Interest rate Swaps.  

                                                (Rs. '000s) 

Sr. No Particulars 

Currency 
Derivatives* 

Interest Rate 
Derivatives** 

As at As at  

 31 March 2020  31 March 2020 

1 Derivatives (notional Principal Amount)     

  (a) For hedging -  -  

  (b) For trading 28,328,106 7,314,433 

2 Marked to Market position     

  (a) Asset (+) 695,008 121,164 

  (b) Liability (-) (594,552) (56,756) 

3 Credit Exposure # 2,705,446 188,059 

4 
Likely impact of one percentage change in Interest Rate 

(100*PV01)- Market Risk 
    

  (a) On hedging derivatives - - 

  (b) On trading derivatives 9,025 83,254 

5 Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year      

  (a) On hedging     

  Maximum - - 

  Minimum - - 

  (b) On trading      

  Maximum 14,935 188,711 

  Minimum 7,089 81,101 

#Based on current exposure method prescribed vide RBI master circular on exposure norms. 

*Currency Derivatives includes Cross Currency Swaps and Foreign Exchange Contracts. 

**Interest rate Derivatives includes Interest rate Swaps. 
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6 ASSET QUALITY 

 
6.1     Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)  

 

(i) The percentage of Net NPA to Net Advances is 11.00% (Previous Year: 3.14%)   

 

(ii) Movement in gross non-performing assets is set out below   

                                                                (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 
 31 March 2021 

As at 
 31 March 2020 

Opening balance 1,698,110 1,265,317 

Additions during the year 2,042,000 1,698,110 

Reductions during the year  (17,380) (1,265,317) 

Closing balance 3,722,730 1,698,110 

 

(iii) Movement in net non-performing assets is set out below 

                          (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021 

As at 
31 March 2020 

Opening balance 794,803 - 

Additions during the year 1,742,000 794,803 

Reductions during the year  (17,380) - 

Closing balance 2,519,423 794,803 

 

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on Standard Assets)   

                                                             (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021 

As at 
31 March 2020 

Opening balance 903,307 1,265,317 

Additions during the year 300,000 903,307 

Reductions during the year  - (1,265,317) 

Closing balance 1,203,307 903,307 

 

6.2     Movement of Gross NPAs   
                                            (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 
As at 

 31 March 2021 
As at 

 31 March 2020 

Gross NPA (Opening balance) 1,698,110 1,265,317 

Additions during the year 2,024,620 1,698,110 

Sub-total (A) 3,722,730 2,963,427 

Less:- Up gradations - - 

Less:- Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded 

accounts) - (39,924) 

Less:- write-offs - (1,225,393) 

Sub-total (B) - (1,265,317) 

Gross NPAs (closing balance) 3,722,730 1,698,110 

 

 

6.3 Concentration of NPAs  

                                            (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021 

As at  
31 March 2020 

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts  3,396,560 1,698,110 
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6.4  Sector wise advances                

                                             (Rs.000s) 

Sl.  
No. 

Sector 

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances 
Gross NPAs 

Percentage 
of Gross 
NPAs to 

Total 
Advances in 
that sector 

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances 
Gross NPAs 

Percentage of 
Gross NPAs to 

Total 
Advances in 
that sector 

A Priority Sector       

1 
Agriculture and allied 

activities 
1,534,220 1,025,830 66.86% 1,570,054 1,025,830 65.33% 

2 

Advances to industries 

sector eligible as 

priority sector lending 

2,138,644 

 

 

 

- 

- 735,214 - - 

3 Services - - - 600,000 - - 

4 Personal loans - - - - - - 

  Sub-total (A)        3,672,864 1,025,830 27.93% 2,905,268 1,025,830 35.31% 

 

                                                 (Rs.000s) 

Sl.  
No. 

Sector 

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances 

Gross NPAs 

Percentage 
of Gross 
NPAs to 

Total 
Advances in 
that sector 

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances 

Gross NPAs 

Percentage of 
Gross NPAs to 

Total 
Advances in 
that sector 

B Non Priority Sector       

1 
Agriculture and allied 

activities  

 

- 

 

- 

 

- - - - 

2 Industry 16,031,425 1,196,900 7.47% 17,471,879 672,280 3.85% 

3 Services 4,396,788 1,500,000 34.12% 5,843,301 - - 

4 Personal loans - - - - - - 

  Sub-total (B) 20,428,213 2,696,900 13.20% 23,315,180 672,280 2.88% 

          

  Total (A+B) 24,101,077 3,722,730 15.45% 26,220,448 1,698,110 6.48% 

 

** For Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC) (category-wise) purchased and sold during the year refer point no. 21 below 

 

6.5   Details of financial assets (including written off accounts) sold to Securitization / Reconstruction Company for Asset    
Reconstruction    

                                                                                                                                                                                            (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 

 
For the year 

ended 
31 March 

2021 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 
2020 

No. of accounts                
- - 

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC - - 

Aggregate consideration - - 

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - - 

Aggregate gain/loss over net book value - - 

     

                                           

6.6    Disclosures relating to Securitization   

 There are no securitization transactions entered into by the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2021. 
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6.7    Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold 

The Bank has not purchased or sold any non performing financial assets during the current financial year. The Bank has not 

purchased any non performing financial assets during the previous financial year.  

6.8 Provisions on Standard Assets  
                                                         

(Rs. '000s)  

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

Provision towards Standard Assets 193,886 109,559 

Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure 23,263 35,742 

Provision for Country Risk 13,044 8,102 

Total 230,193 153,403 

 

6.9 The spread of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe has resulted in decline in economic activities and increase in movement in 

financial markets. In this situation, Bank is gearing up itself on all fronts to meet the challenges. The situation continues to be 

uncertain and the Bank is evaluating the situation on an ongoing basis. Major challenges for the Bank could be from extended 

working capital cycles, fluctuating cash flow trends and probable inability of the borrowers to meet their obligations against the 

loans timely. A definitive assessment of the impact of COVID-19 is dependent upon circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent 

period.   
 

6.10 COVID19 Regulatory package- Asset classification and Provisioning  
                                     (Rs. '000s)  

Particulars Amount 

Amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended                -    

Amount where asset classification benefits is extended                 -    

Provisions made during the F.Y. 2020-21                -    
Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and the residual 

provisions                -    
 

6.11 Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress 
                           (Rs. '000s) 

Type of borrower 

(A) 
Number of 

accounts where 
resolution plan has 
been implemented 
under this window 

(B) 
exposure to 

accounts 
mentioned at (A) 

before 
implementation of 

the plan 

(C) 
Of (B), 

aggregate 
amount of debt 

that was 
converted into 
other securities 

(D) 
Additional funding 
sanctioned, if any, 
including between 
invocation of the 

plan and 
implementation 

(E) 
Increase in provisions 

on account of the 
implementation of 
the resolution plan 

Personal Loans - - - - - 

Corporate persons* - - - - - 

Of which, MSMEs - - - - - 

Others - - - - - 

Total - - - - - 

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

 

Pursuant to RBI Circular DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August, 2020 on resolution framework for COVID 19, the Bank had 

extended the benefit of One Time Restructuring (OTR) to three eligible borrowers during the financial year ended 31 March, 2021. As at 

31 March, 2021, the details of OTR scheme which have been invoked but are pending implementation are shown below;                              

                                        (Rs. '000’s)       

Type of borrower (A) 
Number of accounts where 
resolution plan is pending  

implemented as at 31 March, 2021 

(B) 
Funded outstanding as at 31 

March 2021 to accounts 
mentioned at (A) 

(C) 
Provision held as at  

31 March, 2021 

Corporate persons – Standard 1 763,290 100,000 

Corporate persons - NPA 2 2,000,000 300,000 

Total 3 2,763,290 400,000 

 

In case of one standard account, Bank has created an OTR provision amounting to Rs. 100,000 (000’s) and the same is included in 

Provision towards standard assets under Schedule 5 – Other Liabilities and Provisions. 
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In case of other two borrowers, the accounts have slipped into NPA after invocation date.  

6.12 Disclosure of waiver of interest during moratorium period as per the RBI guidelines 
 
RBI circular DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 07 April, 2021 required banks to refund/adjust the 'interest on interest' charged to 

the borrowers during the moratorium period, i.e. 01 March, 2020 to 31 August, 2020 in conformity with the Honourable Supreme Court 

of India judgement dated 23 March, 2021. Pursuant to the said order and as per the RBI circular, the methodology for calculation of the 

amount of such 'Interest on Interest' was finalised by the Indian Banks Association (IBA) on 19 April, 2021. Based on the 

instructions/methodology from IBA, the Bank has reversed interest income amounting to Rs. 1,590 (000’s) for the year ended 31 March, 

2021. The refund/adjustment to eligible borrower accounts will be made in due course. 

7 (a)  Business Ratios  
 

 Particulars 
As at  

31 March 2021 
As at  

31 March 2020 

a. Interest income as a percentage to working funds # 3.79% 6.75% 

b. Non-interest income as a percentage to working funds # 0.27% 0.18% 

c. Operating Profit as a percentage to working funds # 0.71% 0.48% 

d. Return on assets @# 0.03% -0.84% 

e. Business (Deposits plus Advances) per employee $ ## (Rs. ’000)  1,013,884 1,156,283 

f. Net Profit per employee $ (Rs. ’000) 390 (8,204) 

# working funds is taken as average of last twelve-month end total assets. 

@ Return on Assets is with reference to average working funds. 

$ Number of employees as at year-end has been considered. 

## Business is calculated as net advances plus deposits excluding interbank deposits. 

(b) Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) as at 31 March 2021 is 32% (Previous Year: 53%)   

         

8 Asset Liability Management  

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021 

                     (Rs. '000s) 

Maturity Buckets 
Loans and 
Advances #@ 

Investments Deposits* Borrowings # 
Foreign 
Currency 
Assets** 

Foreign 
Currency 
Liabilities** # 

Day – 1 1,172,500 5,205,251 468,899 - 1,530,623 270,544 

2-7 Days 905,782 432,772 1,098,853 - 9,804 3,867 

8-14 Days 5,984 528,754 1,464,495 - 913,875 632 

15-30 Days 1,017,257       1,200,875 2,639,770 - 353,904 2,152 

31 Days & upto 2 months 1,334,799 1,090,612 4,902,336 - 333,600 3,265 

Over 2 Months and upto 3 

months 
1,887,034 2,092,384 10,189,157 - 1,367,237               3,918 

Over 3 Months and upto 6 

months 
         847,277 1,525,155 6,194,021 - 74,965 318 

Over 6 Months and upto 1 

year 
2,288,086 1,279,284 6,298,784 - 13,445 13,192 

Over 1 Year and upto 3 years 9,888,674 317,216 1,619,287 3,328,055 452,774 3,630,308 

Over 3 Year and upto 5 years 2,730,953 3,773 18,000 1,372,000 141,033 1,425,464 

Over 5 years 819,424 17,314 -  - 113,907 94,561 

Total 22,897,770 13,693,390 34,893,602 4,700,055 5,305,167       5,448,221 
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Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020 
                      (Rs. '000s) 

Maturity Buckets 
Loans and 
Advances # 

Investments Deposits* Borrowings # 
Foreign 

Currency 
Assets** 

Foreign 
Currency 

Liabilities** # 

Day – 1 1,177,595 8,659,124 323,013 - 187,797 111,277 

2-7 Days 3,171,100 278,817 607,714 - 908,210 15,458 

8-14 Days 546,107 443,085 2,212,322 - - - 

15-30 Days 1,724,862          559,948 3,469,707 - 1,589 1,258 

31 Days & upto 2 months 2,482,533 1,500,467 6,955,469 - 24,784 13,879 

Over 2 Months and upto 3 

months 
601,414 2,835,972 14,898,182 - 29,269             28,845 

Over 3 Months and upto 6 

months 
         696,779 1,966,936 10,635,802 165,540 577,036 165,596 

Over 6 Months and upto 1 

year 
2,965,295 1,007,821 5,350,740 82,770 183,895 107,050 

Over 1 Year and upto 3 years 2,512,263 261,040 1,919,458 - 190,562 103,269 

Over 3 Year and upto 5 years 9,439,193 -  -  4,428,195 144,009 4,544,355 

Over 5 years - 18,219 -  - 169,873 144,700 

Total 25,317,141 17,531,429 46,372,407 4,676,505 2,417,024       5,235,687 

* Term deposit are calculated basis the behavioral pattern as approved by ALCO 

# Borrowings and Loans include balances in foreign currency which is also reported under Foreign currency Liability and 

Foreign currency Assets respectively. 

** Foreign currency assets and liabilities excludes Off Balance sheet items 

@Classification into the time buckets for the term loans as at March 31, 2021 has been done basis the maturity of the 

respective term loans. The interim cash flows of the term loans are shown under the respective maturity buckets as 

prescribed by RBI circular  No. DBOD. No. BP. BC. 38 /21.04.098/2007-08 dated October 24, 2007. In the previous year, the 

term loans were classified into   the time buckets based on the final maturity. 

    Bucketing for 2020 has been re-stated and MTM on Derivatives have been included. 

    Interest received in advance has been bucketed as per average bucket of “Over 3 months and upto 6 months” 

 

9  Exposures:    

 

9.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector   

The lending to real estate sector as at 31 March 2021 – NIL, (Previous Year: NIL) 

 
9.2 Exposure to Capital Market   

                        (Rs. ‘000s) 

Sr 
No 

Particulars As at 

 31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March  2020 

I Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 

debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus 

of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;     -** - ** 

Ii advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities 

or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including 

IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and 

units of equity oriented mutual funds; - - 

Iii advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 

mutual funds are taken as primary security; - - 

Iv advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the 

primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ` 

does not fully cover the advances; - - 
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V secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees 

issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; - - 

Sr 
No 

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March  2020 

vi loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / 

bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for 

meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies 
in anticipation of raising resources; - - 

vii bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; - - 

viii underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of 

primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds; - - 

ix financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; - - 

x all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and 

unregistered) - - 

 ** Equity shares received in lieu of debt, fully provided 

9.3        Concentration of Deposits         
                                   (Rs.'000s)                                                 

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors* 34,893,602 44,373,292 

% of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the Bank* 95.43% 95.68% 

*Includes inter-bank deposits 

 

9.4 Concentration of Advances  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers* 32,238,983 26,928,881 

% of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Bank 67.53% 69.50% 

* Advances comprise credit exposure (funded and non-funded credit limits) including derivative transactions computed as per 

Current Exposure Method in accordance with RBI guidelines under reference DBOD. No. Dir. BC. 12/13.03.00/2015-16 - Master 

Circular on Exposure Norms, dated July 1, 2015 

   

9.5    Concentration of Exposures   
                    (Rs.'000s) 

Particulars As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers* 32,238,983 26,928,881 

% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure 

of the Bank on borrowers/customers 

67.53% 69.50% 

* Exposure comprise credit exposure (funded and non-funded credit limits) including derivative transactions and investment 

exposure in accordance with RBI guidelines under reference DBOD. No. Dir. BC. 12/ 13.03.00/2015-16 –  Master Circular on 

Exposure Norms, dated July 1, 2015. 

                      

9.6 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue  
 

                                               (Rs.‘000s) 
Particulars As at 

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 

Total Assets - - 

Total NPAs - - 

Total Revenue - - 
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9.7 Off- balance sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)  
                                (Rs. ‘000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

Domestic   

Name of the SPV sponsored N.A. N.A. 

Overseas   

Name of the SPV sponsored N.A. N.A. 

 

9.8   Risk Category wise country Exposure  
                                                                                                                                                                                                 (Rs.'000s) 

 As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

Risk category Exposures Provisions Exposures Provisions 

Insignificant 5,217,702 13,044 3,240,929 8,102 

Low - - - - 

Moderate - - - - 

 

9.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank 
 

 RBI vide their master circular DBR.No.BP.BC.43/21.01.003/2018-19 dated 3rd June 2019 has prescribed exposure limits for banks in 

respect of their lending to single counter party and Groups of connected counterparties. The exposure limits prescribed are 20% of the 

bank’s eligible capital base in case of single counterparty and 25% of the eligible capital base in case of Group of connected 

counterparties. Additionally, banks may in exceptional circumstances, with the approval of their Head office and recommendations of the 

local management of the Bank consider enhancement of the exposure to a single counterparty up to a further 5% of the eligible capital 

funds. 

The Bank has enhanced/Sanctioned the credit exposure by an additional 5 per cent of Capital funds in respect of the below mentioned 

entity/ies with the approval of the Management during the year. 

 LREHL Renewables India SPV1 Pvt. Ltd. 

 United Breweries Ltd 

 

9.10 Unsecured Advances     
 

Details of advances included in Schedule 9 where intangibles such as rights, licenses, authorizations, etc. are charged to Bank as 

collateral:   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  (Rs. ‘000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

Total amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over 

rights, licenses, authority etc. has been taken  
- - 

Estimated value of intangibles collaterals as stated above  - - 

          As per directions from RBI, these advances are treated as unsecured advances in schedule 9. 

9.11 Amount of provisions made for Income tax during the year      
                                                 

(Rs. '000s)  

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

For the year ended 
31 March  2020 

Provision for Income Tax 87,000 - 

Deferred Tax - - 

 
9.12 Disclosures of Penalties imposed by RBI       

 
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no penalties imposed on the Bank (Previous year: NIL) 
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9.13    Operating Leases    

 
Office Premises are taken on operating lease. The non-cancellable lease term is for 36 months and renewable at the option of the 

Company. Certain lease agreements contain clause for escalation of lease payments. There are no restrictions imposed by lease 

agreements. There are no subleases. Lease payment during the year are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.          

        

                                                                                                                                                  (Rs. '000s) 

 Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at 

 31 March 2020 

Operating Lease payments recognized during the year 34,709 32,854 

Minimum Lease Obligations - - 

             Not later than one year 26,032 - 

             Later than one year but not later than five years  - 

             Later than five years 
- - 

 

9.14 Disclosure on provisioning pertaining to Fraud Accounts                  

                             (Rs. ‘000s) 
Particulars Year ended 31 March 

2021 

Year ended 31 March 

2020 

No of frauds reported - - 

Amount involved in frauds - - 

Quantum of provision made - - 

Quantum of unamortised  provision debited from other reserves - - 

             

 * The exposure was written off during the year ended 31 March 2018. 

10 Segment Reporting  

The Bank has adopted RBI guidelines on Segment reporting in terms of which the business of the Bank is divided in to three 

segments: Treasury, Corporate Banking and Other Banking Business. The principal activities of these segments are as under: 

 

Primary Segment Principal Activities 

Corporate/Wholesale Banking The Corporate Banking provides services in the form of providing loans to the 

corporate. The segment earns income in the form of Interest and fees on loans.  

Treasury The Treasury segment mainly undertakes Asset-Liability gap funding, by taking 

interest rate and liquidity risks, investing monies in government securities and 

funding & gapping of corporate loan products. Revenues of Treasury segment 

consist of interest income on assets and gains from investment activities. Treasury 

provides funds to other segments as per the needs of business. There is a funds 

transfer price attached to the funds so provided or deployed by treasury to other 

segments, which forms part of inter-segment revenues. The segment also bears 

the cost of deposits mobilized. 

Other Banking Business Other Banking Business includes items not allocated to any other segment as 

specified in RBI guidelines. 

                   

                                                (Rs. '000s) 

Business Segments 
31 March 2021 

Treasury 
Corporate 
Banking 

Other Banking 
Business 

Total 

Segment Revenue 904,413 1,930,594 213,590 3,048,597 

Unallocated Revenue - - - (308) 

Segment Result (712,935)              705,748 128,753 121,386 
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Unallocated Expense - - - 11,820 

Operating profit - - - 109,258 

Income tax - - - 87,000 

Extra Ordinary Profit/Loss - - - - 

Net Profit - - - 22,258 

Other Information     

Segment Asset 27,700,636 22,938,242 57,378 50,696,256 

Unallocated Assets - - - 851,211 

Total Assets 27,700,636 22,938,242 57,378 51,547,467 

Segment Liabilities 38,921,497 2,564,671 - 41,486,168 

Unallocated Liabilities - - - 10,061,299 

Total Liabilities 38,921,497 2,564,671 - 51,547,467 

 

              (Rs. '000s) 

Business Segments 
Treasury 

Corporate 
Banking 

Other Banking 
Business 

Total 31 March 2020 

Segment Revenue 
 

1,012,090 

 

3,014,518 

 

152,115 

 

4,178,723 

Unallocated Revenue - - - 10 

Segment Result (1,718,929) 1,153,488 65,936 (499,505) 

Unallocated Expense - - - 9,181 

Operating profit - - - (508,676) 

Income tax - - - - 

Extra Ordinary Profit/Loss -  -  -  - 

Net Profit - - - (508,676) 

Other Information - - - - 

Segment Asset 36,969,629 25,420,760 162,999 62,553,388 

Unallocated Assets - - - 821,162 

Total Assets 36,969,629 25,420,760 162,999 63,374,550 

Segment Liabilities 51,103,437 2,292,388 - 53,395,825 

Unallocated Liabilities - - - 9,978,725 

Total Liabilities 51,103,437 2,292,388 - 63,374,550 

Items which are not directly attributable to any particular segment and which cannot be reasonably allocated to various 

segments are consolidated under unallocated column. 

 

The Bank renders its services within one geographical segment in India and hence no secondary segmental disclosure 

(geographical segment) has been made. 

 

11 Related Parties      
Head Office and other branches  
 
COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A. and its branches. 

 

Other related parties of COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A where common control exists at group level (with whom the Bank 

has transactions during the year):  
 
a) Rabo Shared Services Private Limited (RSSPL) 

b) De Lage Landen Financial Advisory Services India Private Limited (DLL) 
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Key Management Personnel  
  

 Mr. Paul Schuilwerve, Chief Executive Officer, India (up to 30 November 2020) 

 Ms. Teenal Sethi, Interim Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 01 December 2020 up to 30 May 2021) 

 Mr. Ramit Bhasin, Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 31 May 2021) 

 

 
11.1     Disclosure in respect of transactions as on/ for the year ended 31 March 2021 are summarized as follows:     

Transactions during the year                      
                                (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 

Head Office 
and other 
branches 

Other related 
parties in 

COOPERATIEVE 
RABOBANK U.A 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

Head 
Office and 

other 
branches 

Other related 
parties in 

COOPERATIEVE 
RABOBANK U.A 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

  

31 March 
2021 

31 March  
2021 

31 March 
2021 

31 March 
2020 

31 March  
2020 

31 March 
2020 

Interest Paid - 34,274 - - 68,077 - 

Interest received - 61,017 - - 69,961 - 

Referral and support services 

fees paid 
- 38,103 - - 32,448 - 

Term Loan issued - - - - 290,000 - 

Term Loan repaid -        248,400 - - 177,000 - 

Current A/c Deposits received - 14,510,919 - - 7,873,246 - 

Current A/c Deposits 

withdrawn 
- 14,476,233 - - 7,917,527 - 

Fixed Deposits received - 9,991,000 - - 11,091,000 - 

Fixed Deposits Withdrawn - 10,131,000 - - 11,271,000 - 

 

   Closing balances                

(Rs. '000s) 

Other related parties of 
COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A 

As at 31 March 
2021 

Maximum during 
the year 2020-2021 

As at 31 March 
2020 

Maximum during the 
year 2019-2020 

Deposits   710,000 2,450,000 850,000 2,040,000 

Term Loans 625,100 873,500 873,500 1,004,500 

Current account deposit 34,686 1,859,367 77,787 1,573,075 

Other Receivables 139 4,136 193 6,722 

Other Liabilities 3,524 47,309 8,287 54,024 

 

In line with the RBI guidelines, related party disclosures exclude transactions in a category where there is only one related party 

(i.e.   Key Management Personnel and Head Office and other branches). Thus where there is only one entity in any category, 

particulars of those transactions have not been provided. During the year there was only one Chief Executive Officer at one point in 

time. 

 

11.2     Managerial Remuneration     

In accordance with the requirements of the RBI Circular No. DBOD.NO.BC.72/29.67/001/2011-12 dated 13 January 2012, the Bank 

has submitted to the Reserve Bank of India a letter from the head office which states that the compensation policies in India 

including that for the Chief Executive Officer are in line with the Financial Stability Board requirements.  
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11.3     Intra group exposure    
                           (Rs. '000s) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Customer 
 

Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020 

Funded O/s Non-Funded 
O/s 

Funded O/s Non-Funded O/s 

1 De Lage Landen Financial 

Services India Private Limited 

625,100 - 873,500 - 

2 DLL Ireland - 172,737 - 105,200 

 
12 Additional Disclosures 

 

12.1   Provisions and Contingencies    

a. Description of Contingent Liabilities 

 

Sr. No. Contingent Liability  Brief Description 

1. Claim against the Bank not acknowledged as 

Debts. 

NIL 

2. Liability on account of outstanding forward 

exchange and derivative contracts 

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts, Currency 

Swaps and Interest Rate Swaps on its own account and for 

customers. The notional amounts that are recorded as 

contingent liabilities form the basis for the calculation of the 

interest component on the contracts where applicable. 

3. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, 

Acceptances, Endorsements and  Others  

As a part of its normal banking activities the Bank issues 

documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of its customers.  

4. Other items for which the Bank is contingently 

liable. 

Represents committed undrawn amount(s).  

 

b. Provisions and Contingencies recognized in Profit and Loss account include:        

                        (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 

Provision for Depreciation on Investments 43,802 8,040 

Provision/write-off towards non-performing assets and 

Investments 
300,000 863,383 

Provision for Standard Assets 84,327 (57,256) 

Provision for Income Tax (including Deferred Tax) 87,000 - 

Provision for Country Risk 4,942 8,102 

Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (12,479) (21,944) 

Total 507,592 800,325 

 

c. The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for 

material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under 

law/ accounting standard for material foreseeable losses is recorded in the books of account. For current year there is no 

such provision ( Previous Year:  NIL ) 

 

d. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that there are no pending litigations for which a provision is required 

under any law or accounting standards. 

  

12.2  Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure    

 
The Bank has in place a process for monitoring credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposures of its borrowers. 

The objective is to review the borrower’s foreign currency exposures and encourage them to hedge the unhedged portion, if 
considered to be over acceptable level. Assessment of foreign currency exposure is a part of assessment of the borrower and is 

undertaken while proposing limits or at the review stage. Further, the Bank also requests Borrowers to submit their position of 

hedged/ unhedged foreign currency exposures on a periodic (quarterly) basis and reviews the same as suggested as per the 
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extant RBI guidelines. The Bank also maintains incremental provision towards the unhedged foreign currency exposures of its 

borrowers in line with the extant RBI guidelines. 

The Bank has maintained provision of Rs. 23,263 (‘000s) on account of Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as at 31 March, 

2021, [Previous year: Rs.35,742 (‘000)] 

12.3   Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)  

 

The Bank measures and monitors the LCR in line with the Reserve Bank of India’s circular dated June 9, 2014 on “Basel III 
Framework on Liquidity Standards – Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), Liquidity Risk Monitoring Tools and LCR Disclosure Standards”. 
The LCR guidelines aims to ensure that a bank maintains an adequate level of unencumbered High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) 

that can be converted into cash to meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day time horizon under a significantly severe liquidity 

stress scenario. At a minimum, the stock of liquid assets should enable the bank to survive until day 30 of the stress scenario, by 

which time it is assumed that appropriate corrective actions can be taken. Banks are required to maintain High Quality Liquid Assets 

of a minimum of 100% of its Net Cash Outflows by January 1, 2019. However, with a view to provide transition time, the guidelines 

mandate a minimum requirement of 60% w.e.f. January 1, 2015 and a step up of 10% every year to reach the minimum 

requirement of 100% by January 1, 2019.The adequacy in the LCR maintenance is an outcome of a conscious strategy of the Bank 

towards complying with LCR mandate ahead of the stipulated timelines. 

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA primarily in the form of SLR investments over and above mandatory requirement apart from 

regulatory dispensation allowed up to 18% of NDTL in the form of borrowing limit available through Marginal Standing Facility 

(MSF) and Facility to Avail Liquidity for Liquidity Coverage Ratio (FALLCR).  

CMC of the Bank has empowered ALCO (Top Management Executive Committee) to monitor and strategize the Balance Sheet 

profile of the Bank. In line with the business strategy, ALCO forms an Interest Rate/ Liquidity and funding strategies are formulated 

by the TRG in accordance with the ALCO guidance.  

The below mentioned table provides the quarterly LCR computation for the four quarters of the financial year 2020-21. The LCR is 

being monitored on a daily basis and accordingly, daily average figures are reported for the four quarters of the financial year 2020-

21. 

 

In computing the below information, certain estimates/ assumptions have been made by Bank’s management which has been 
relied upon by the auditors. 
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12.4     Floating Provisions   

There are no floating provisions made during the year ended 31 March, 2021 (Previous Year: NIL) 

12.5 Drawdown from Reserves   
There are no instances of draw down made from reserves during the current financial year. (Previous year: NIL) 

 

12.6 Disclosure of Complaints:          
 

(A) Customer Complaints:  
 

 Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - - 

(b) No. of complaints received during the year - - 

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year - - 

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - - 

 

(B) Awards Passed by Banking Ombudsman:  
 

 Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at 

31 March 2020 

(a) No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year - - 

(b) No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen during the year - - 

(c) No. of Awards implemented during the year - - 

(d) No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year - - 

 

12.7   Small and Micro Industries:    

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 which came into force from October 2, 2006 certain 

disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. There are no outstanding dues towards 

principal amount or interest thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under, Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

development Act, 2006 as at the end of the accounting year, (Previous year: NIL) 

13. Details of Intangible Assets: - 
 

The movement in fixed assets capitalized as software is given as below: 

                                                          (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

At cost at the beginning of the year 86,609 86,609 

Additions during the year 13,444 - 

Deductions during the year - - 

Accumulated depreciation  88,328 86,255 

Closing Balance  11,725 354 

 

14. Disclosure of Letters of Comfort issued by the Bank:   

       The Bank has not issued any Letters of Comfort during the current and previous financial year. 
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15. Employees Benefits:    

(a) Provident Fund: 
 
The contribution to the employee’s provident fund amounted to Rs. 16,549(’000s) for the year ended 31 March 2021, [Previous 

Year: Rs. 16,332 (‘000s)] 

 

(b) Compensated absences: - 
 
The charge for compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2021 – Rs. 7,783(’000s), [Previous year:  Rs. 891(‘000s)] 
 

(c) Gratuity:  
The Bank has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on 

departure for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying 

insurance policy. 

 

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the profit and loss account and the funded 

status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans. 

 

Profit and Loss charge based on actuarial valuation: 

Net employee benefit expenses (recognized in employee cost) 

                                                                       (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at 

 31 March 2021 

As at 

 31 March 2020 

Current service cost 3,923 4,535 

Interest Cost 1,656 2,565 

Expected return on plan assets   

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year (3,390) (7,213) 

Past Service Cost   

Total included in employee benefit expense 2,189 (113) 

 

Balance sheet: 

Details of Provision for Gratuity 

                                                                         (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

Present value of Funded Obligations 26,937 34,598 

Fair value of plan assets (5,235) (1,198) 

Present value of unfunded  obligations   

Unrecognized Past Service Cost   

Net Liability recognized in Balance Sheet 21,702 33,400 

 

 

Changes in the Present Value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows 

                                     

                                    (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at  

31 March 2020 

Opening defined benefit obligation 34,598 38,388 

Interest cost 1,856 2,647 

Current service cost 3,923 4,535 

Past Service Cost - - 

Benefits paid (9,686) (3,542) 

Transfer In #  - 

Transfer Out  #  - 

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (3,755) (7,430) 

Closing defined benefit obligation 26,936 34,598 

# Represent employee transfer from /to other related parties 
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  Changes in the Fair Value of plan assets are as follows: 

                                                         (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at 

 31 March 2020 

Opening fair value of plan assets 1,198 1,062 

Expected return on plan assets 201 82 

Contributions by employer 4,200 3,812 

Benefits paid  (3,542) 

Return on plan asset (excl interest income) (364) (216) 

Transfer In #   

Transfer Out #   

Actuarial gains / (losses)   

Closing fair value of plan assets 5,235 1,198 

Actuarial gain (loss) to be recognized  - 

# Represent employee transfer from/to other related parties 

 

             Experience Adjustments: 

                                                           (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars As at  

31 March 2021 

As at 

 31 March 2020 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 26,936 34,598 

Fair Value of Plan Assets (5,235) (1,198) 

(Surplus)/ Deficit 21,702 33,400 

P&L –(Income)/expenses 2,189 (113) 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    (Rs. '000s) 

 Particulars As at 31 March 
2021 

As at 31 March 
2020 

As at 31 March 
2019 

As at 31 March 
2018 

As at 31 March 
2017 

Present value of 

defined benefit 

obligation 

26,936 34,598 38,388 32,130 35,813 

Fair value of plan 

assets 

(5,235) (1,198) 1,062 (5,554) (9,903) 

(Surplus) / deficit in 

the plan 

21,702 33,400 37,326 26,576 25,910 

Experience 

Adjustment Liability 

(687) (2,681) 2,168 521 (989) 

Experience  Asset 

(Gain)/Loss 

(396) (216) (15) 30 (232) 

 

Principal assumptions at the balance sheet date: 

                                  (In %) 

Particulars As at 31 March 
2021 

As at 31 March 
2020 

Discount Rate (%) (p.a.) 6.06% 6.24% 

Salary escalation rate (%) (p.a.) 2.00% 5.00% 

Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 6.24% 7.23% 

Employee turnover (p.a.) 15.00% 14.00% 

 

 

16        Unamortized Pension & Gratuity   

There are no unamortized amounts of pension and gratuity expenditure in current year, (Previous year: NIL). 

17       Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund   

There are no amounts required to be transferred by the Bank to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund for the year ended 31 

March 2021 and 31 March 2020. 
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18        Miscellaneous income and Other expenditure:          
 

Miscellaneous income in excess of 1% of revenues for Current Year: NIL (Previous Year: NIL)  
 

Other expenditure in excess of 1% of revenues for Current Year: Taxes paid – Rs. 106,006 (000’s), Premium on PSLC- Rs. 87,362 

(000’s) & Communication/Information Technology expenses – Rs. 38,246 (000’s) (Previous Year: Taxes paid – Rs. 132,134 (000’s), 
Premium on PSLC- Rs. 54,911 (000’s) & Communication/Information Technology expenses – Rs. 32,667 (000’s)) 
 

19       Bancassurance business:   

The Bank has adopted RBI’s guidelines on Bancassurance business issued in terms of which the Bank has to disclose the details of 

fees/remuneration received in respect of the Banc assurance business undertaken by them: 

 

Sr. No. Nature of Income As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2020 

1. For selling life insurance policies - - 

2. For selling non-life insurance policies - - 

3. For selling mutual fund products - - 

4. Others(Specify) - - 

 

 

20      Corporate Social Responsibility  
 

The average profit before tax of the Bank for the last three financial years was Rs. (6,38,362) (‘000) basis which the Bank is  

not liable to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities in the current financial year. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    (Rs. '000s) 

Particulars 
 

Total Amount Spent for the 
year ended 31 March 2021 

Total Amount Spent for the 
year ended 31 March 2020 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - 

(ii) On  purpose other  than (i) above 962 - 

 

 

21   Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)   
        Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)  ( category-wise ) Purchased and sold during the year 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                ( Rs. ‘000s) 
                                                                                              31 March 2021 31 March 2020 

Particulars Units Amount Units Amount 

PSLC purchased during the year     

(i) PSLC –Agriculture  -  - 

(ii) PSLC- SF/MF - - - - 

(iii)  PSLC-  Micro Enterprises 1,430 3,575,000 365 912,500 

(iv)  PSLC- General 5,040 12,600,000 6,700 16,750,000 

Total 6,470 16,175,000 7,065 17,662,500 

PSLC sold during the year     

(i) PSLC –Agriculture - - 120 300,000 

(ii) PSLC- SF/MF - - - - 

(iii)  PSLC-  Micro Enterprises - - - - 

(iv)  PSLC- General 1,200 3,000,000 - - 

Total 1,200 3,000,000 120 300,000 
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22   Prior year comparatives 
 

Previous year figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year’s classification. 
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